
able at the time of the ne- I from Edmonton to the tv est 
La Biche, and thence to Fort 

J is about 235 miles, and a 
le along Lae La Biche is about 
pakmg a total of 260 miles.

The Conclusion.
I reviewed at some length the 
|--f> and circumstances which 
give a bearing on ||| subject 
■the inquiry, it is necessary to 

ueir value taken together as 
support of the conclusion im- 
10 terras of the resolution re- 
the Commission. It will be 

It lie only members of the Gov- 
br of the Legislature against 

evidence casts any suspicion 
on Premier and Attorney-Gen- 
plr. Cornwall. With reference 
•mv.al!. it is admitted that he 
El L5Ü0. and expects $10,500 

>!r. Clarke’s railway and his 
nd to that extent at least he 

llv inteiTste-l in the enterprise, 
the negotiations, the contract 

ond sale, he professes a pro- 
trance. He has stated that, 

|and out of season, he has tried 
everyone in the project of a 
Fort '1 (-Murray. In March,

I states 1 that he is satisfied that a 
puitee <-:in be obtained from the 
1 Government; and yet. from a 
E?Bontbs later, when Mr Clarke 
mh“ interests of the Athabasca 
1, if one is to accept his evidence,
■ to have lost all interest in the 
■He says he did not know what 
was being made, and made no 
and did not concern himself 

jry. In view of the interest he 
J in the country, the anxiety 
■splayed in trying to get a rail- 
I. and his financial interests that 
| affected by such a road, it is 

understand such a frame of 
-3 taking of an in'crest in the 
f tho enterprise would have been 

■ton of anything improper, but 
“ cf such interest might suggest 
î is something to be concealed, 
picious circumstances, however,

Jno definite ^conclusion ;Jand he 
|d that he received any other 
r ws.s interested in any other 
? enterprise, and it must he held 
uddencejdoes not/establish the

neccrsarv, then, to consider 
i?fleet of the evidence is towards 

jig whether the iPremier or At- 
■neral was or is interested in 
lirise. It will be apparent from 
Ion of the .facts that little if 
T-ety.r. can be made between the 
pi that Mr. Cross seems to have 

closely in touch with Mr. 
The evidence shows that in 

|er of 11)08, when encouragement 
ce by way of a guarantee of 
given to Mr. Clarke, who was 

lite stranger from the United 
|ho had no interests whatever 
Tovince, only a few months had 
fence the Athabasca Syndicate,
I almost entirely of western men, 
refused any assistance, although 
I asked only for a guarantee up 
ft. but not to exceed $13.000 a 

interest at 4%, and had shown 
J ting a strong probability that 
Kl carry out the enterprise. The 
Ithe 18th October. 1,007, indeed' 
la guarantee of only the interest 
Intis, the anr >unt ■, which, how- 
1 # u tter Was
lied by their engineer's estimate, 
■he cost of building the road as 
J mile, including $1,000 for bal­
in’ sidings," $1 ,(X)0 ior terminals,

J for equipment. It suggests 
should be added for contin­

ua if there were any special 
I which there is not, as the evi- 
Iv s) it might come up to $20,000 
p would be a fair assumption 
famishing an estimate such as 
In application for a guarantee, 
pr would- not err in making the 
Itoo low. Tihs letter was rpro- 
phe Commission by the Premier 
j>py had been furnished by the 
I. V\ hen the negotiations were 
In ( ohur, or thereabouts, not 
Tyr the receipt of this letter and 
"Hr Clarke was still the stranger 

but he got a promise of as- 
I 1 nice far beyond what

ern asked for before. A guar- 
M’O Li mile at 4°/%, had been 

Lar.d^>'20,000 a mile at 5% was 
p:s Cov pany. Sittings and ter- 
P been included in the former 
ut special provision was made 
here, increasing the mileage 
by 81,140 for the terminals,

[1 at $400,000, and by £750 for 
c, i: only the minimum sidings 
^‘The evidence sho.vs that the 
Bing.; ;.:ay be Lvs, but seldom is 
li half the average cost per mile 
pneral line. In the guarantees 
he Canadian Northern and (Jranri 
lac id • no special provision is 
M'lings or terminals. This Com- 
jraiited to sell all its bonds before 
Jditure OÎ anything on the road, 
lives, of course, a considerable 
Inr: \-i on the capital while it 

j||forc it is actually earned, 
hwr.mteed for the Canadian 

are chiefly roads authorized 
[ist-ructed by the Company al- 
lerreJ to as incorporated by 

A Mann, under the name of 
In a & Midland Railway, and 
P Act of Incorporation, as al- 
Inî anted, bonds can be issued 
report ion to so much of the line 
|ai!v constructed or under con­

fie same restriction is imposed 
linion Act which authorizes the 

Trunk Pacific branch lines 
ie Province guaranteed. The 
lis ruade to this Company, as 
*n<heated, upon completion of 

without ballast, in ten mile 
nth the result that at the end 

be an unballasted road, with 
>7,000,000 paid over and no 

r operation or even equipment 
\vept a company which has not 
\ ' 1 rer.sury, and has trans-

I - .-rock and assets.
• Rutherford’s attention being 
[this possible consequence, he 

provision by saying that 
u^be operaetd as 5t) mile 

compleved. It is perfectly 
the Act cf Incorporation pro- 
this shall be done, but while 
no i>enaity for failure to corti^ 
i' term, it may also be pointed 

1 of the proceeds can be with- 
ire a single mile of road is com- 

cau-c, as is already shown, the 
paid out, under the terms of 
e and agreement, “upon the 
l (except as to the ballast) 
riy indicates that ballàst is un- 
b» ere the road is complete in 

dation of the Legislature, 
cp '-ritly before the Company 
Bil on to operate.it. 
mileage, even Dr. Waddell put * 
the outside, but for some um

ROYAL COMMISSION’S 
REPORT PRESENTED

(Continued from Page Two).

J

K
I i

>>

Itinued on Page Three).

explained reason it was put in the agree­
ment at 350 exactly, thus involving the 
building and the paying for at least 15 
miles on Dr. Waddell's then showing, 
and 30 to 50 miles as shown by actual 
work on the ground, of road quite un­
necessary for the carrying out of the 

/ undertaking as disclosed by the docu­
ments, and the draft Act referred to sug- 

i gests that if the Legislature had approved 
it might have been put even higher.

' It is apparent that the effect of these 
concessions in each case is to increase the 
amount of money which the Company is 
to receive, and to make it available as 
soon as possible without in any way in­
creasing the benefit which the country 
is to receive in return. And without re­
gard to the cost of the road, it is to be 
paid out to the Company in sums of 
S200,000 for each ten miles constructed 
without ballast, the cost of which, as in­
dicated by the evidence, would be much 
less than that sum, it being placed at 
about $16,000 a mile by Mr. Goddard, 
who, being the Company’s engineer, 
would therefore naturally not be likely to 
place it at too low a figure, and who is the 
one witness who is able to speak from 
personal knowledge of the conditions. 
Hss estimate, too, includes $1,363 a mile 
for contractor’s profit, and is for the gen­
eral line, the sidings being estimated at 
something under $10,000 a mile. And 
after all this the surplus, which, if the 
bonds had been sold at their actual value, 
would have been about half a million 
dollars, is to be given to the Company. 
The standard fixed, too, is that of a road 

J not now existing, and therefore very hard 
* to determine, and, as the evidence shows,

J admittedly, of a low class, whereas in the 
other cases the standard set is that of 

\ a modem road of recognized standard. 
4 Tire explanation offered for this is that 
| the specifications which were adopted 

were those furnished by Mr. Mann as the 
original specifications for the Canadian 
Northern main line, in which the Crow’s 
Nest is given as the standard. Mr. Mann 
in his letter submitting these specifications 
points to many defects, some of which are 
immaterial in the ease of roads subject 
to the Board of Railway Commissioners 
of Canada, which has its own regulations. 
No provision is made to remedy these de­
fects in the specifications accepted, but 
perhaps the inference of lack cf care is 
justified quite as much as that of intention 
to favor the Railway Company.

Unfortunately, in the absence of Mr. 
Clarke as a witness, no estimate can be 
placed on his personality or persuasive 
powers. But the fact that intelligent 
men-acting as trustees make an agree­
ment with a stranger for work to be done 
by him, and make concessions vastly 
n excess of what were asked by others 
for the same work, and of what are 
granted to others for similar work, and 
with absolutely no knowledge of the cost 
of the work to be done other than, that 
offered by the other party to the contract, 
may reasonably give rise to the suspicion 
that they have been actuated by some 
motive other than regaM for the interests 
it was their duty to protect. Tire im­
putation of the words of the resolution 
of the Assembly set out in the Com­
mission is that that motive is personal 
interest. Many of the facts and cir­
cumstances related are consistent with 
such a conclusion. The suggested in­
timacy between Mr. Clarke and Mr. 
Cross, and the proceeding with the 
building of the road without having 
fulfilled the legal requirements, sug­
gesting a relationship warranting the 
belief that the Government will approve 
of what is done, are also consistent with 
this view. But the facts are consistent 
with other conclusions, and in addition 
to that fact, direct testimony is given 
by both Dr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross 
explicitly denying any personal interest 
whatever, and it cannot be said that 
either the evidence itself, or the manner 
in which it was given, furnishes any 
reason to doubt its correctness, and the 
only ground for rejecting it would be 
because the circumstantial evidence is 
in conflict with it. As there is room 
for doubt that the inference of personal 
interest is the only reasonable inference 
to be drawn from the circumstances 
related, and in view of the positive 
denial, it can only be said that, in the 
opinion of your commissioners, the 
evidence does not warrant the finding that 
there was or is any such personal interest 
on the part of Dr. Rutherford or Mr. 
Cross, as is suggested by the words of 
the resolution of the Assembly.

All of which is respectfully submitted. 
D. L. SCOTT,

■ HORACE HARVEY.
Dated at Edmonton, August 23rd, 1910. 
Minority Report by Judge Beck.

Edmonton, Alta., Aug. 23, 1910. 
To His Honor the Lieutenant Gov- 

ebnor of Alberta in Council:
Sir,—I have the honor to present this 

as my report, in pursuance of the Com­
mission recently issued by Your Honor 
and directed to the Honorable Mr. Jus­
tice Scott, the Honorable Mr. Justice 
Harvey and myself.

The necessity for my making a separate 
report arises^irom the fact that though 
in the result my answers to the precise 
points of the inquiry are perhaps not 
materially different from those of my 
colleagues, the evidence has made quite 
a difièrent impression upon my mind 
with regard to the; motives which actuated 
and the intentions which occupied the 
minds or Mr. Rutherford, Mr. Cross and 
Mr. Cornwall, the only persons, being 
‘ " Officers of the Government or Members 
of the Legislature,” upon whom any 
imputations were cast during the progress 
of the inquiry. It therefore becomes 
necessary for me to express my views 
upon the more prominent circumstances 
dealt with by my colleagues in their 
joint report, in which, for the reason in­
dicated, I find myself unable to concur.

My colleagues are of opinion that it is 
not important to find what is the truth 
with regard to Mr. Cushing’s knowledge 
of what took place at the meeting of the 
Ministers in Calgary in July, 1908. In 
my opinion it is of the greatest importance 
to do so. Criticism is made of Mr 
Rutherford and Mr. Cross on the ground 
of their knowledge of various things 
at various stages of the affairs which are 
the subject of this inquiry, and from this, 
coupled with Mr. Cushing’s supposed 
ignorance, ie drawn an inference, or at 
least a suspicion, of an undue favoring 
of this Company on their part, yfttfi the 
intent of obtaining benefits from it, 
while not even a suggestion of suspicion 
i* made against Mr. Cushing. I make 
none, and I think there is no ground 
whatever to do so; but if it be a fact— 
end in my opinion the evidence establishes 
that it is a fact—that Mr. Cushing had

m the affair, then it seeing to me to be 
illogical and unreasonable that the same 
circumstances should be made the ground 
of adverse inference or suspicion against 

1 Mr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross. The 
evidence satisfies me that Mr. Cushing 
was present at the July meeting. Mr. 
Cross is positive that Mr. Cushing was 
there. Mr. Rutherford is sure of it. 
Mr. Cushing was in Calgary at the time, 
and though he states he has no recollection 
of being present, he is not prepared to 
say that he was not present. Then it 
appears that Mr. Stocks. Mr. Cushing’s 
deputy, wrote to'Mr. Cushing at Calgary 
on the 22nd June saying: “Mr. ltuthei- 
ford states that he would prefer having 
the matter (referring to another matter 
from the Railway project) settled at the 
next full Council, and that you wifi not 
likely be all together until Fair week in 
Calgary.” If Mr. Cusding was present 
at the July meeting in Calgary then he 
undoubtedly concurred with the other 
members of the Cabinet in leading Mr. 
Clarke to expect that upon the return of 
his engineers from making a reconnais­
sance the Government would be ready 
to enter into negotiations with him for 
assisting the project—assistance which 
it must have been quite obvious, even 
if not mentioned, must take the form of a 
guarantee of bonds. The engineers re­
turned from their work of reconnaissance 
about the 1st of October, 1908. Some 
time was occupied in compiling their re­
ports, and in conference with Dr. Waddell, 
who arrived in Edmonton about the mid­
dle of October. Immediately upon the 
return of the engineers, however, Mr. 
Clarkp entered upon the definite negotia­
tions with the Government, which were 
contemplated at his meeting with the 
Ministers in July. Mr. Minty, air. Clarke

ge of all the important steps vision.

solicitor in Winnipeg, came to Edmonton 
about the 5th October, and he and Mr. 
Woods, then Deputy Attorney General, 
by direction of Mr. Cross, commenced 
the consideration and preparation of the 
necessary legislation and documents, and 
by the 14th November—the date of a, 
meeting of the Ministers referred to— 
there had been drafted the Act of Incor­
poration, the Guarantee Act, and a form 
of mortgage to indemnify the Government 
against its guarantee, in which, however, 
a number of questions were left undeter­
mined. There was a meeting of Dr. 
W’addell, Mr. Goddard, and Mr. Phillips 
with Mr. Cushing and Mr. Stocks in the 
afternoon of the 13th November, followed 
by a meeting in the evening, at which 
Mr. Cushing was not present. Mr. Cush­
ing says he has no recollection of being 
informed by any other member of the 
Government or learning from any other 
source up to this time, or even on the 
occasion of this meeting, that negotiations 
were under way between Mr. Clarke and 
the Government; that as far as his recol­
lection goes it was only from these en­
gineers on that occasion that he learned 
even that anyone was contemplating any 
such negotiations. Mr. Stocks, however, 
says that he himself had been aware for 
some time before that engineers were 
making a reconnaissance of the line, 
and that Mr. Goddard was one of them. 
They both admit that Mr. Clarke’s name 
was mentioned as the promoter. Mr. 
Stocks says that they not only discussed 
the physical features of the country, but 
also the grades, and that he apd Dr. 
Waddell disagreed upon the maximum 
percentage of grade, a circumstance 
which to my mind inchoates that the 
discussion was of such a character as 
obviously assumed that negotiations were 
on foot.

There is no indication that any of the 
persons present at these meetings, all 
of whom, with the exception of Mr. 
Phillips, were examined as witnesses, 
were surprised at what, if Mr. Cushing 
or Mr. Stocks ha hadd no kind of inti­
mation that negotiations were actually 
on foot, would be a sudden visit by 
the engineers calling for some explanation 
by way of introduction. I believe the 
fact to be that at the meeting in July— 
at which, as I have said, I am satisfied 
Afr. Cushing was present—it was quite 
distinctly understood that Mr. Clarke 
had engineers ready to start out at once 
to make a reconnaissance; that in con­
sequence of the assurances then and there 
given him they would actually start out 
immediately; that on their return Mr. 
Clarke would make a definite proposal 
to the Government for a guarantee of 
bonds; that the Ministers were ready 
to give a guarantee, without, however, 
at that time considering the amount or 
any jother details of, the contemplated 
arrangement.

Finding this as I do, there is,A in my 
opinion, no room for any great surprise, 
if it be a fact, that Mr. Cross in the 
beginning of October, less than three 
months later— Mr. Clarke’s engineers 
having returned, and he having decided 
to present his proposal in definite form—i 
should even without communication with 
Mr. Cushing or any other member of 
the Government (if we assume it to be 
so) instruct his Deputy that he might, 
in consultation with Mr. Clarke’s solicitor 
draft the Act of Incorporation and the 
Act of Guarantee, and such other docu­
ments as would be proper in order to 
put the proposal of Mr. Clarke into defi­
nite form for intelligent consideration 
by the Cabinet.
' Mr.|Woods drew the Act of Incorpora­
tion. As a result of discussion with Mr. 
Minty, a certain special provision was 
inserted, which has been much criticized, 
and which has been taken as casting sus­
picion upon Mr. Cross. This special 
provision which prevents the application 
to the Alberta and Great Waterways 
Railway Company of Sections 20 (2), 
210, 233 to 240 inclusive of the Railway 
Act of Alberta. Now it is quite clear 
that in the first instance it was not Mr. 
Cross but Mr. Woods who, as a result of 
Mr. Minty’s arguments, consented with­
out consultation with Mr. Cross, to the 
insertion of this special provision, and that 
when explaining the Act to the Cabinet 
he expressed the opinion that the pro­
vision was a reasonable one.

Subsection 2 of section 20 provides 
that two at least of the directors shall 
while holding office be residents of the 
Province.

Section 210 provides for the granting 
of equal facilities to all express companies

Sections 233 to 238 provide for the 
purchase of the road by the Province.

Section 239 seems of no importance.
Section 240 requires the same returns 

to the Government as are required in the 
case of joint stock companies.

I attach no importance to the provision 
as to the residence of directors.

The provision of the Railway Act, 
which provides for the Ministers’ approval 
of the tariff of rates to be charged, and 
the other provisions against discrimi­
nation, seem to me to be sufficient to 
make the provisions of Section 210 un­
necessary.

In substitution for Sections 233 to 238 
of the Railway Act, there is a provision 
that the Government shall have the op­
tion of purchasing the entire undertaking 
at any time at its then fair value as a 
going concert. I see no substantial 
difference in nhe practical effect of the 
two provisions, nor any advantage to 
the Company in the substituted pro-

In substitution for the provision for
returns is a provision in the contract 
that during the continuance of the 
guarantee the books of the Company 
shall at all times be open to the inspec­
tion of the Government.

In view of the fact already stated that 
Mr. Woods agreed to this provision, 
and that Mr. Cross merely assented to 
it upon Mr. Woods’ explanation and 
expression of opinion that it was reason­
able, I think that it cannot be made 
ground for suspicion of intention on Mr. 
Cross’ part to favor the Company un­
duly

Mr. Woods also similarly drafted the 
Act of Guarantee of which, as I under­
stand, uo special criticism is made.

He alsogrevised a draft of a mortgage 
submitted by Mr. Minty. In the form 
in which he submitted it there are, as 
I have said, a number of matters left 
open for consideration.

These were the documents presented 
to the meeting of the Ministers on the 
14th of November, and then and there 
explained by Mr. Woods. It does not 
seem to me to be a matter of surprise 
that the contemplated arrangement be­
tween Mr. Clarke and the Government 
was for the first time formally and de­
finitely discussed by the Members of the 
Cabinet on the one side and Mr. Clarke 
and his advisers on the other until after 
this work of Mr. Woods had been com­
pleted. In none of these documents 
was mention made of the amount of the 
guarantee or the maximum cost of the 
terminals. On the Departmental files 
in evidence before us are Mr. Woods’ 
drafts of the Act of Incorporation, the 
Act of Guarantee and the Mortgage, and 
there is more than one copy of the latter. 
These two questions were there and then 
discussed and settled, as well as the 
name of , the proposed company. The 
settling of these questions involved the 
filling in of blanks in the draft Acts and 
some other slight alterations. Little, 
if any consideration was given to the 
terms of the mortgage, which, in fact, 
had been compiled from commonly used 
forms, and there seems to be no reason 
why at that stage there should have 
been any special consideration of it.

Mr. Cushing admits that the sum of 
$20,000 a mile was then settled, although 
he says he thought it was fixed as a 
maximum amount which was not to be 
exceeded.

The rate of interest—5 per cent.—had 
been inserted by Mr. Woods in the draft 
of the Guarantee Act. He says he had 
previously discussed this rate with Mr. 
Cross, expressing his own opinion in 
favor of it, and that Mr. Cross had ap­
proved of it. Mr. Woods says the docu­
ments he had prepared were explained 
by him to the Cabinet on that occasion, 
andjit is almost impossible to suppose 
that the rate was not mentioned. Mr. 
Rutherford and Mr. Cross say the rate 
was discussed.

No serious criticism seems to be made 
of the amount, $400,000, fixed as the 
malsimum cost of the Edmonton termi- 
nax. Following the meeting of the 14th 
of November, Mr. Rutherford gave Mr. 
Clarke the following letter:

. “ Edmonton,[November 14, 1308.
“Dear Sir—In order to develop the 

country north of Edmonton we will intro­
duce, promote and submit for ratifica­
tion at the next ensuing session of the 
Legislature, legislation to incorporate 
you and your associates as a company 
to build and operate a railway suitable 

*for the requirements of the country, in 
accordance with the terms of the accom­
panying draft charter, and to guarantee 
its bonds in accordance with the terms of 
the accompanying Guarantee Act. The 
cost of the Edmonton terminals as 
mentioned in the draft Act and Mort­
gage shall not exceed $400,000.

Yours truly.
“ (Sgd.) A. C. RUTHERFORD,

“ Premier.
“W. R. Clarke, Esq.,

“ Kansas City,-Missouri, Ü.S.A.”
For reasons I have indicated, the 

evidence satisfies me that as a result of 
the meeting of the 14th of November, 
Mr. Rutherford had such authority from 
his Cabinet, including Mr. Cushing, as 
justified him in giving such a letter to 
Mr. Clarke.

I say including Mr. Cushing, because, 
to repeat what I have said in other 
words, if Mr. Cushing had the knowledge 
and was consulted and assented with 
reference to the contents of the draft 
Acts of Incorporation and Guarantee

the extent which I find oiutfie evidence 
is the case, then the pointy of criticism 
directed against the contents of these 
two Acts tell equally against Mr. Cushing, 
and if they afford no ground for an impu­
tation of dishonesty against him—and I 
think they do not—then they can afford 
no ground for that imputation against 
Mr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross.

Now there are several things which are 
criticized in the documents adopted 
by Mr. Rutherford’s letter: (1) the 
amount of the guarantee, as being too 
high. With regard to this amount, 
a comparison is first made between it 
and the amount which the'' Athabasca 
Syndicate, who held the Athabasca Rail­
way Charter, were on the estimate of 
Mr. Woodman ready to aceept as a 
guarantee, namely, $13,000 a mile, based 
on Mr. Woodman’s estimate of $18,000 
or $20,000 a mile of actual cost.

Here again it is important to note Mr. 
Cushing’s knowledge. There is no evi­
dence that either Mr. Rutherford or Mr. 
Cross was aware of the fact that the 
Syndicate were of opinion that a guaran­
tee of $13,000 a mile would be sufficient 
to enable them to finance the road, while, 
on the other hand, there is direct evi­
dence that Mr. Cushing was aware of it; 
for Mr. Hawes says he mentioned that 
amount to him. There is no evidence 
that in the course of negotiations with 
Mr. Clarke Mr. Cushing recalled the 
earlier propositions made to the Govern­
ment. I fancy that they never occurred 
to him, or possibly, if they did occur to 
him, that he thought they were of no 
consequence; because the Government 
were dealing with a man Vho at that 
date—the autumn of 1908—had satis­
fied the Government of his financial 
standing, and, if he effected an arrange­
ment with the Government, of his in­
tention to proceed at once with the build­
ing of the road, one which, opening up 
connection with the great waterways to 
the north, the Government were pleased 
to see undertaken. I say the Govern­
ment had been satisfied of Mr. Clarke’s 
financial standing, because Mr. Cross 
says that at the meeting in Calgary, Mr. 
Clarke produced certain letters and 
telegrams indicating it from persons of 
financial standing in Kansas City. Some 
of these—dated in June, 1908—were pro­
duced by Mr. Cross. Furthermore, Mr. 
Rutherford says that Mr. Clarke satisfied 
him that he had good grounds to believe 
that the Morgans would finance the 
scheme. Mr. Rutherford made some 
reference to (his in introducing the 
legislation, and subsequent events show 
thut Mr. Rutherford’s appreciation of 
Mr. Clarke’s ability to obtain the Morgan’s 
assistance was correct. •

I say, therefore, that there is no just 
ground for a suspicion against Mr. Cush- 
i ig by reason of lire not reverting to 
the earlier propositions of the Athabasca 
Syndicate, and therefore none for sus­
picion against Mr. Rutherford or Mr.
Cross.

Then the $210,000 a mile guarantee is 
contrasted with Dr. Waddell’s confi­
dential estimate to Mr. Clarke of $17,000 
a mile. Now Dr. Waddell may be open to 
severe criticism in some respects, but 
the bald reference to $17,000 a mile is 
not a fair one. He states that it was not 
made on the basis of the specifications 
agreed to in respect of the grade; that 
it was made on the expectation that a 
grade of 1* per cent, would be accepted, 
whereas the specifications call for a grade 
of 1 per cent. He states, too, that his 
item for water supply was too low, as 
he had overlooked the increased expense 
in this country on account of the severe 
cold, and had supposed that water could 
be procured practically anywhere along 
the line, which he subsequently found 
was not the case. He also states that 
this figure was made on the basis of 
“Mr. Clarke doing this work himself, 
letting the contract to station men, and 
not having a general contractor in be­
tween, who would make $2,000 to $3,000 
a mile out of it.” He states further 
that with these additions the figure 
would run up to $21,000 a mile, and, ernor ln 
speaking of the estimate as a whole, it 
was made as “the lowest figure that Mr.
Uiarke could hope to build a road on.”

Mr. Goddard, of whose integrity there 
is absolutely no doubt, and which was 
questioned by no one, says this estimate 
wa,s “absolutely rock bottom.”

At the time of his examination as a 
witness Mr. Goddard gave an estimate 
of the cost, of which the following is a 
summary:
Items comprised in his”report

of Nov. ti, 1908.....................$ 6,819.00
Estimated profit for contractor

20 per cent............ ,............. 1,363 .00
Sundry additional items not 

included in former report.... ] ;985.00
Track........................ 5,197.58
Legal expenses........ 250.00
Engineering............. 750.00
Interest during construction... 750.00

„ . $17,114.58
Equipment based on figures 

supplied by Mr. James........ $2,977.00

$20,091.58
» Mr. James’ figures for equipment appear 

to be excessive. Fifteen Hundred dol­
lars a mile seems about the correct ligure; 
$1,477 should therefore be deducted irom 
the total of $20,091.58, leaving $19,014.58. 
Mr. Goddard, however, states that his 
figure, $6,819, was_based upon a grade of 
li%, and that the reducing of the grade 
to 1%, as required by the specifications, 
woulu increase all the items, making up 
that sum except clearing and grubbing, 
the cost of which he had put at $750 a 
mile; and that be would not like to figure- 
on less than an increase of 50% on the 
other items, as the additional cost oc­
casioned by the difference in grade. Tak­
ing the $6,819.00 and deducting $750.00 
there remains $6,069.00. Add 50% of 
thiç, or $3,034.00, to $19,614.58, and 
we have $22,649.08, as^Mr. Goddard’s 
estimate, made at a time when he had 
had the advantage of knowing the par­
ticulars of several other estimates, and 
had been engaged on actual work on the 
road for some time.

Then Mr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross 
are criticized for agreeing to a guarantee 
of $20,000.00 a mile without having ob­
tained independent expert information 
as to the probable cost. Perhaps they 
have left themselves open to criticism 
on this point. We are not, however, con­
sidering their wisdom in neglecting to se­
cure such information, but their motives; 
and it is therefore of importance to under­
stand what information they had, and how 
they viewed the question."

Both Mr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross 
say, in effect, that after the meeting of 
July, 1908, steps were taken to ascer­
tain what guarantee had been given to 
other roads by other Governments, and that 
at the time, they .agreed to $20,000.00 
they had knowledge that the Man­
itoba Government, had guaranteed 
$20,000.00 a mile on the line of the 
C.N.R. from Winnipeg to Port Arthur, 
and that the Dominion Government had 
guaranteed $13,000.00 a mile for the first 
50 miles, and $25,000.00 a mile for the 
next 100 miles of the line of the Edmonton, 
Yukon & Pacific, west of Edmonton, and 
that the Ontario Government had guar­
anteed $20,000.00 a mile for the line 
from Toronto to Sudbury, and, further 
more, that the Edmonton, Yukon <fc 
Pacific had^reason to expect a cash sub­
sidy from the Dominion Govei ament 
which there was no reason to expect 
for this Company. Mr. Rutherford’s 
and Mr. Cross’ explanations may not in­
dicate that they took the most business 
like course, but it is not at all so unsatis­
fying an explanation as to suggest to my 
mind any dishonest motive.

(2) Another point of criticism is the 
rate of interest. I am free to say that 
1 think that placing the rate at a rate 
higher than 4% was not good business for 
the Province, and I am satisfied that had 
an expert financier been consulted, as 
X think he should have been, he would 
have so advised. But, again, it is not a 
question of wisdom, but of intent. Now 
what were their reasons? There was more 
than those indicated in my colleagues’ 
report. First, they said they thought 
that this being a pioneer road, the bonds 
would not sell as well as those on a road 
through a settled territory, or prairie 
country, or as those issued by a well es­
tablished railway company, or as those 
issued by a well established railway com­
pany, notwithstanding the guarantee 
of the Government. 1 nere is some truth 
in this which is not indicated in my col­
leagues’ report. Mr. Rutherford says he 
formed this opinion by reason of the fact 
that in the early history of Manitoba 5% 
bonds had. been issued, and by reason of 
information acquired by conferences with 
financial men in England. He says that 
he had learned that, strange to say as he 
thought, railway bonds guaranteed by 
a government do not sell as well as, the 
government’s own bonds. Mr. Bennett, 
who.no doubt knows a good deal about 
such matters, admitted that this was so. 
The reason no doubt is that in the case 
of a guaranteed bond the government 
is only secondary liable; that is, liable 
only in case of default by the railway, 
and there may on that account be con­
siderable delay and some expense in the 
bondholder obtaining payment of the 
interest upon the bond. Mr. Cross gives 
virtually the same explanation.

Mr. Rutherford was of opinion that 
it was more in the interest of the financial 
reputation of the Province that the rate 
at which the bonds sold should be a good 
one than that the rate should be low, 
and the intention was that the bonds 
should produce as near par as practicable

In January, 1999, Alberta Government 
4% 30 year bonds to the amount of

i.e., a discount amounting to $61,224.06. 
These bonds had been held for some four 
or five months, during which, and until 
January, 1909, the state of the money 
market was such that the discount would 
have amounted to practically double 
that sum. hi other words, at the time 
the rate of 5% was fixed as the rate on 
the Company's bonds, the Government’s 
4% bonds would not, sell at 95. We can 
probably set off the fact in favor of the 
Company’s bonds that they were for 50 
years, not 30 as in the case of the Gov­
ernment bonds, against the fact in favor 
of the Government bonds that they were 
not merely guaranteed bonds, but bonds 
upon whieli the Government was solely 
and directly liable. Without an increase 
in the rate, therefore, the Company’s" 
bond for $20,000 might well have been 
estimated in November, 1908, as worth 
only $19,000.

(3) Then the circumstances that the 
Company having a capital of $7,000,000 
is permitted to do business as soon as only 
$50,000 of stock has been subscribed and 
paid in full, is made another ground of 
suspicion.

The Railway Act provides for a sub­
scription of 26% of the capital stock, 
and the payment of 10% thereon; but it 
also provides for the increase of the cap­
ital stock by a vote of the shareholders 
and the approval of the Lieutenant Gov- 

Council. I know of more than 
one company, in view of these or similar 
provisions, placed its capital stock- at a 
sum much less than that which would 
ultimately be required, thus accom­
plishing by another perfectly legitimate 
method what was permitted to this Com­
pany on the face of ita charter.

(4) Then it is pointed out that this 
Company is given the right to bond its 
road to the extent of $40,000.00 a mile, 
and comparison is made in this respect 
with a number of other companies in­
corporated at the same session of the Leg­
islature, which were restricted to less 
sums. This bald fact, without a con­
sideration of the character of the country 
through which these other companies 
proposed to construct their lines, is of 
little value. On the other hand, I find 
that the Dominiou Act of 1900, incorpor­
ating the G.T.P. Branch Lines Com­
pany, authorizes that Company to issue 
bonds in respect of its Manitoba, Sask­
atchewan and Alberta extensions to the 
extent in different instances of $30,000, 
$40.000 and $.50,000 a mile.

The legislation—that is, the Act of In­
corporation and the Act of Guarantee— 
was passed at the session of 1909. which 
prorogued on the 25th of February. The 
contract and mortgage for the purpose 
of carrying the arrangement into effect 
were not settled and executed until the 
autumn of that year.

The provisions of both these documents 
are criticized. What was at first laid hold 
of as the most startling of these previsions 
was the supposed fact that this Company 
had been permitted to use “prairie loam” 
for balast. It has been established con­
clusively that this is not a fact; that these 
words, appearing as they did in the forms 
of specifications used in connection with 
the contracts of guarantee in favor of 
the G.T.P. Branch Lines Company and 
the C.N.R., were in the case of the A. 
it G. W. Ry Co. noticed and eliminated, 
but in the case of the other two companies 
not noticed, and therefore are to be found 
>n their specifications only.

Then the specifications as a whole were 
criticized, but on investigation it appears 
that they were, as a matter of law, of 
fact, and of intention, identical with 
those used forming part of the contracts 
with the other two companies mentioned.

The lines of the G.T.P. and the C.N.R. 
in respect of which the Government 
guaranteed bonds, were to he constructed 
“to a general standard not inferior to 
the standard of the main line of the Can­
adian Northern Railway between Win­
nipeg and Edmonton, and to the sat­
isfaction of the Chairman of the Execu­
tive Council.” This Company’s line was 
to be constructed “in an equally substan­
tial manner and of the general charater 
of that of the Crow’s Nest Pass Railway 
between Lethbridge and Kootenay Lake, 
the whole to be executed to the entire 
satisfaction of the Chairman of the Exe 
cutive Council.” In other respects the 
wording of the specifications for the 
G.T.P. and C.N.R., on the one hand, and 
this Company on the other, a e identical 
with two exceptions. (1) the two former 
companies are expressly allowed to ballast 
with “prairie loam:” this Company is 
not: (2) to the specifications for this 
Cogipany is added a clause which’s of no 
legal effect, and is of no importance from 
any point of view. The main line of the 
C.N.R. between Winnipeg and Edmonton 
was built to the standard of the Crow’s 
Nest Pass Railway between Lethbridge 
and Kootenay Lake. The reference there­
fore to either was equivalent to a refer­
ence to the other. It is quite evident that 
the reference to the latter instead of to the 
former was a mere accident. Dr. Wad­
dell, on the Company’s behalf, was con 
tending for specifications which he had 
prepared ; the Officers of the Department 
of Public Works were contending for others 
In settlement of the dispute it was de­
cided that the specifications adopted in 
the case of the C.N.R. should be adopted 
for this Company, and Mr. Woods was so 
instructed. Mr. D. D. Mann had fur­
nished the Government with a copy of 
the specifications on which the main 
line of the C.N.R. from Winnipeg to 
Edmonton had been bidlt. These speci­
fications fixed the standard as tl at on 
the Crow’s Nest Pass Railway between 
Lethbridge and Kootenay Lake. Mr. 
Woods took a copy of these specifications 
and omitted, what he undoubtedly would 
have done had he observed the refereed 
to the latter company, to substitute for 
it a reference to the former. To have 
made this change was the obvious thing 
to do, though to do so would not change 
the legal effect. The fault, if fault it 
were, was that of Mr. Woods’; there was 
no intent, good, bad or indifferent, on 
the part of Mr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross. 
All three swear the intention was to have 
the same specifications as in the case of 
the C.N.R.

Then there is severe criticism of the 
provision of the contract that the net 
proceeds of the bonds “shall be paid 
out to the Company from time to time 
upon the completion (except as to the 
ballast) of every section of 10 miles ot 
railway to the satisfaction of the Lieu- 
tenant-Governor-in-Council, according to 
the said specifications, and as certified 
upon the certificate of the said engineer 
so appointed by the Lieuteaant-Governor- 
in Council at the rate of $20,000 a mile.”

In considering the effect of this pro­
vision it is important to bear in mind 
the provisions of Section 22 of the Com­
pany,’s charter, reading as follows : Upon 
each successive 50 miles of line being 
complete the Company shall provide ac­
commodation for freight and passengers 
thereon.” Now Mr. Rutherford’s ex-‘ 
planation of, the criticized clause is 
^ js * ^ •was method of payment
adopted in the agreement between the 
Canadian Northern Railway Company and 
the Government of Manitoba. It was
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mode of payment. It worked out, in ces, the letter would have furnistied no 
this way: 1 he Company would of neees- griund whatever for comment. Tie 
sitv have to expend very large sums of comment, whatever it may be, is due to 
money before entering upon actual eon- ] Mr. Minty, not to Mr. Rutherford. | 
struct ion and upon a large part of the 1 have dealt with, I think, all the im- 
line beyond any completed portion, and | portant points of criticism agaiVst Mr. 
were obliged to put each successive 59 Rutherford and Mr. Cross. 1 ha, e re­
alties in condition to operate it and jferred to the explanations which th v have 
actually equip it for operation for pas- given of such of these matters, as. it was 
sengers and freight. So that even though, suggested, raised suspicions against them, 
the -cost of the first portion of the line ( These explanations fully satisfied me, 
might be less than 320,000, it was prac- that, though in some instances the. wisdom 
tically not possible that an amount in of their course may be doubtful, their 
excess of actual expenditure should at motives and int mtions were honest, 
any time be made. He stated that the Gouncel for the C mimissioneis had the 
C.N.R. might have had the same privi- fullest opportur ity, of which they availed 
hge, but they were indifferent, being themselves, of exam ti ng all to uams 
satisfied with the other optional methoyl s entdrom or received at each of t e tele- 
of payment. j graph offices in Edmonton, the b nk ac-

My colleagues arc of opinion that by i counts of Mr. Rutherford, Mr. Vivss,. Mr. 
reason of the terms of the contract—jUomwali :ind the Company, all documents 
that payment is to be made on completion, m any of the Departments of the Gcv- 
of each ten miles without ballast—the, eminent, and the correspondence cf all 
Company could build the entire road Parties concerned. Mr. Rutherford, Mr. 
without' ballast, and obtain payment ^ro8S an<* Mr. Cornwall submitted to the 
of the entire proceeds of the bonds, and foHcst cross-examination by coui.sel for

a be no comp...................... +u~ n
he ballastii
f Section 22 uuuci ---------—~ — — —*...........

such circumstances be ineffective. 111 hey denied any interest in or in coimec- 
iiffer from them on the interpretation.^011 tIlc arrangement between the
of the section in question. In the | Government and -Mr. Clarke. In my 
ordinary methods of the construction v option the imputations thrown upen them 
of railways the ballasting of the road j been disproved.
occupies several vears after the running l Mr. Cornwall s evidence estL.ll.shed 
of trains has commenced. If completion1 to satisfaction that while he was at 
m?ans Jperfect completion, ballasting j °nc!. tlme interested in the Athabasca 
incans perfect ballasting, and there is noi. 1 ceased to have that nr any
completion until perfect ballasting. But i interest therein by reason of an agreement 
words must Lie interpreted in their popu-!™ade between him and Mr. Clarke in 
tar rather than their exact sense, and]July> 1908- This was evidenced by an 
having regard to the obvio-us purpose of a8roement of the 20th July, 1908. My 
the statute or contract in which thcv|‘jolleaÇues express a doubt as to the ean- 
appear, to the context and to all the'tlor,Pf Mr; Cornwall in his evidence re- 
iurrounding circumstances and condi-, , £ t*1is agreement. I have none. I
tions existing at the date of the statute t°1T?k the suspicion acquired a place in 
or contract. Having this in mind, in1 the11! min(ts by reason of counsel for all 
my opinion the word completion in the P^ies carelessly treating the agreement 
statute means completion in the sense ias,an actual transfer of shares instead of 
which I think the very terms of thelwhat !t ls’ an agreement to transfer tfbon 
con’.act recognize as a proper sense of i Pf»y™ent. of the purchase price. The 
he «on!, namelv." completion withoutlCommissioners were in this way led to 

bid -St.; ” ami certainly a road is in a suppose that the document was a transfer, 
ar sense completed when trains. n.ot “erely an agreement. Under these 
be safely though slowly run over circumstances it is not surprising that Mr.

I rtm Tito 1 I '■TThn /inv+mril», ,4^ zx CP

the statute is 
or that of myself 
moment. The only imnortar. 
is.

Cornwall, -who certainly knew its effect 
proper construe- when it was drawn, should during his 

mTCTi” the proper laymg cross-examination accept transfer as its 
h’ ,u^ Ï road is even, proper designation. cannot F(.P the 

partially ballasted. Again, if there is inappropriateness of Mr. Cornwall saying 
3 7 >tWee" ‘7 statut* ! that he executed this agreement as an
in i the contract, the contract must be evidence of his good faith. He handed

‘ 7 !gl ?f.,thc. rT it to Mr. Clarke upon the latter making
l7'nS PurPpse an"i intent 01 the Statute. > jam the first payment on account of the 
Whether the correct interpretation ot purchase price That [was a quite satis- 

that of my cciieaguce factory way of Mr. Clarke signifying his 
after all, ot little j assent to the agreement.

,, , nP°rtant question In the result my finding is: (1) that Mr.
is, was there a deliberate intent on the j Cornwall had, prior to tHe 20th of July, 
par. of Mr. Rutherford and Mr. Cross j 1908, or thereabouts, an interest in the
by means of the mode o, payment adopted i Athabasca Railway Company, which
to make nugatory the obvious purpose was on that date or thereabouts acquired 
of the statutory provision a provision by Mr. Clarke; (2) that with the above 
,or the insertion of which they were exception with respect to Mr. Cornwall, 
responsible. There is absolutely not the neither Mr. Rutherford, Mr. Cross nor 
slightest ground for any such suspicion. ; Mr. Cornwall were at any time up to 

Some criticism is made, too, of 350 the date of this inquiry interested, cither
miles being fixed as the extent of line directly or indirectly, by himself, or
to be constructed. The object of fixing through others, in the erection, incor- 
any distance, and of fixing that distance, poration or organization of the Alberta 
was in order to issue and sell the bonds 1 & Great Waterways Railway Company, 
en bloc instead of selling blocks repre- ! pr in the making or entering into or t arry- 
senting ten mile sections. There was iag out a certain contract between the
undoubtedly good reason for t his. Large I Government of the Province and the Alter

financiers think it" best to sell debentures j sal® thereof, or in the proceeds cf or the 
for an undertaking in one block, awaiting,1 amount realized f‘om the disposition or 
of course, a good market; provided the the sale of the said securities, ôrolhcrwi» 
undertaking is to be proceeded with slid howsoever in connection with the said 

romptly and within a con- Company.

$2,000,197.26 were sold for $1,938,973,26, | in effect a convenient and satisfactory

completed promptly
paratively short space of lime, as was 
the intention here. I think neither the 
members of the Government nor the 
Company are open to criticism for adopt­
ing this course.

T think a fair calculation of the extent 
of line called for by the specifications is 
■ s follows:

MILES
From Edmonton to the point of com­

mencement of work......................... 15
Thence to House River, 150 or 160

miles, say......... .............................. 1,55
Thence to Fort'McMurray.................. 90
Branch at Lac-la-Biche....................... 40
Sidinrs at least, every nine miles, and 

additional sidings of such length 
and number as may be necessary 
for the traffic similar to the Crow’s 

'Nest Pass Railway, aifd sidings at,
Fort McMurray and divisional 
points. Dr. Waddell, who is the 
only one who estimates them, says 
they will amount to........................ 30
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It is to be remembered, however,’that 

the Company has, under the provisions 
of the Railway Act, power to build 
branch lines not exceeding six miles in 
length. Furthermore, both Mr. Ruther­
ford and Mr. Cross mention another 
branch line, the location of which was 
not defined, as being in contemplation.

The members of the Government may 
have been induced to agree to a total 
length offline,^somewhat in excess of 
what was necessary, but the excess was 
not great, and in any case the Company, 
as a matter of law and intention, could 
not draw from the special account of the 
proceeds of the sale of the bonds more 
money than represented the actual num­
ber of miles of construction at the rate 
of $20,000 afmile.

Some letters of Mr. Minty are referred 
to by my colleaguesjand made the basis 
of some grounds of suspicion. One pur­
ports to report a conversation with Mr. 
Cornwall recounting a conversation with 
Mr. Rutherford. The modes of expres­
sion, whether in speech or writing, of Mr. 
Cornwall and Mr. Minty are as different 
as one cart imagine. Mr. Cornwall is 
brief, abrupt, sententious, using short 
and popular words. Mr. Minty’s habit, 
at all events in writing, is to use long and 
ornate periods. The result of thy obser­
vation by way of contrast of the two men 
and of their correspondence—and there 
was a great mass of letters written by 
Mr. Minty—is that I have little confidence 
in Mr. Minty being a faithful interpreter 
of Mr. Cornwall. Mr. Rutherford denies 
the correctness of Mr. Cornwall’s version 
of his conversation with Mr. Rutherford 
as interpreted and reported by Mr. Minty; 
so does Mr. Cornwall. And Mr. Minty 
admits himself that he may have drawn 
inferences from what Mr. Cornwall said 
to him which arc not justified, s- 
*Mr. Minty’s letter of the 12th Septem­
ber, 1909, to Mr. Woods has been greatly 
criticized. It is in substance a memor­
andum showing what had actually been 
done towards bringing the whole arrange­
ment to a conclusion, and what remained 
to be done. The latter represented a 
good deal of work, much of which it was 
Mr. Woods’ duty to do on behalf of the 
Government. Mr. Rutherford was about 
to go east. Time was pressing, as the 
agreement between Mr. Clarke and the 
Morgans called for the delivery of the 
Bonds m New York by the 1st November. 
VV ith the omission of Mr. Minty’s pleasant­
ry—the expression “the plan of eam- 
Trt'P1 arTd a slight difference in the 
inodes of expression in one or two instan-

All of which is respectfully submitted 
N. D. BECK.

Republicans Hold Kansas

Topeka, Kas., Nov. 10—As all doubt 
as to the complexion of the next Kan­
sas Legislature was settled today when 
returns from 107 of the 125 districts 
gave the Republicans, 63 members, 
a majority. Returns now in give the 
Demovrats 4 5 members. Eighteen 
districts are yet to be heard from. 
Governor Stubbs’ majority will ex­
ceed 14,000.
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If eo, we would ask you to 
enquire amongst your friends 
the value of Zam-Buk For this 
ailment ! Y ou cannot but meet 
with some one who has proved 
how excellent it is.

Mr. II. E. Hill of Shevlin, Man 
writes:—“X suffered a long time with 
piles and tried numerous remedies, hut 
without effect. Having tried a sample 
of Zam-Buk and being encouraged by 
the result, I persevered, using two 
boxes. It worked like magic, and 
effected a complete cure in a very short 
time.” ■ ^

“kr. James Ruddy of Killaloe, Ont. 
says:—"I suffered greatly from piles! 
ihe pain from these—as anyone who 
suffers from them will know—was al­
most unbearable. I tried first one 
remedy and then another, bat all with­
out effect. Then I heard about 2am- 
, . aad, determined to give this won 
uertul balm a trial. I obtained a supply 
and commenced with the treatment; and 
to my great joy, after perseverance with 
Zam-Buk, I obtained permanent relief 
from the agonizing pain of the pile» 
Having been cured by Zam-Buk I 
heartily recommend the balm to a’l 
sufferers.”
7“™’BUk,aIao cures inflamed sores, 
eczema, scalp Bores, ulcers, abscesses, void 
sores, chapped hands, frost bite, eel.
Addn^J11 ek)n injurka and discus, sj 
«JL . “i*8 stores sell at 50c box or 
post free from Zam-Buk Co., Toronto, for 
pnee. Refuse substitutes and imitations.
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